
ATTACHMENT A 
 

DCSC-16-RP-0075 
Business Intelligence Professional Services 

Responses to written questions received from prospective offeror(s) 
 

Question: 
1. Can you provide a diagram of the current data warehouse architecture and/or process? 

Response: 
Please refer to the Courts Business Intelligence Architecture Diagram (Attachment B). 
 
Question: 

2. What specific problems, if any, have you encountered with your data warehouse with   
 respect to: 

a.   Data quality 
b. Query response time 
c. ETL load time 
d. Support 
e. Training 

Response:          
  There have been no specific problems encountered for the above mentioned items, a-e.   
 
Question: 

3. What general Subject Areas have been created by the court? 
Response: 
Subject Areas related to Case Management System and data sources. 
 
Question: 

4. What additional Subject Areas do you anticipate under the enhancement (in addition 
to those mentioned under C.2.3)? 
Response: 
We anticipate Subject Areas to be created for the Data sources that  are brought into the 
warehouse. 
 
Question: 

5. For the Court of Appeals Case Management System - C-Track: 
a. In what form are the data currently stored?  
b. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored?   
c. In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 
d. What additional software applications have user interfaces for adding, 

modifying or deleting the data? 
Response: 
This is a COTS product. 

a. The data is stored in SQL Server database 
b. It’s a small database   

 c.  20-30 tables 
d.   None 
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 Question: 
6. For the MIP Financial System:  

a. In what form are the data currently stored?  
 b. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored? 
 c.   In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 
 d.   What software applications have user interfaces for adding, modifying or   
      deleting the data? 
  e. Is this a reference to Abila MIP Fund Accounting software or is this an internal,  
      custom software application? 
Response: 

a. The data is stored in SQL Server database 
b.  It’s a small database with 20 – 30 tables 
c. Not significant data 
d. None 
e. This is a COTS product 

 
Question: 

7. For the Cherwell Help Desk Ticketing System: 
a. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored?  
b. In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 

Response: 
a. This is a new COTS product using SQL Server database that was recently 
implemented in the  last 2 months. There is no significant data.  
b.  20-30 tables 
 

Question: 
8. For the Avaya VoIP Call Center Systems: 

a. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored?  
b. In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 

Response: 
  a. This is a COTS product using SQL Server database 
  b. 20-30 tables 
 
Question: 

9. For the Court Smart Courtroom Audio Recording System:  
a. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored? 
b. In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 
c. What software applications have user interfaces for adding, modifying or 

deleting the data? 
Response: 
This is a COTS product. There is no information to disclose for questions a, b and c. 
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Question: 
10. For the Digital Wills Oracle APEX System: 

a. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored? 
b. In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 
c. What additional software applications have user interfaces for adding, 

modifying or deleting the data? 
Response: 

a. This is a small database 
b. 10-20 tables 
c.  None 

 
Question: 

11. For the HR systems (import external reports): 
a. In what system(s) and form are the data currently stored? 
b. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored? 
c. In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 
d. What additional software applications have user interfaces for adding, 

modifying or deleting the data? 
Response: 
a. HR system is a Cloud solution and we will be importing data from excel 

spreadsheets and / or flat files. 
b. The Courts will not be retrieving raw data 
c. Not relevant. Data will be imported from end user reports in spreadsheets 
d. Not relevant. Data will be imported from end user reports in spreadsheets 

 
Question: 

12. For the Financial systems (import external reports): 
a. In what system(s) and form are the data currently stored? 
b. Approximately how many relevant, primary records are stored? 
c. In approximately how many tables (or similar form) are the records stored? 
d. What software applications have user interfaces for adding, modifying or 

deleting the data? 
Response: 

a.   Financial system is a Cloud solution and we will be importing data from excel 
spreadsheets       and / or flat files. 

b. Not relevant. We will not be retrieving raw data. 
c. Not relevant. Data will be imported from end user reports in spreadsheets. 
d. Not relevant. Data will be imported from end user reports in spreadsheets. 

 
Question: 

13. How many individuals do you anticipate for BI Author Training and BI Consumer 
Training? 
Response: 
10-12 users per session 
 
Question: 

14. Do you require a training plan for internal maintenance of the new system? 
Response: 
No 



4 
 

 
Question: 

15. For ongoing support/help desk inquiries, is the developer expected to provide first 
level support? 
Response: 
No 
Question: 

16. Have the Oracle licenses been secured for the upgrades, including migration from OBIEE 
11.1.9 to 12C and SharePlex? If not, when are they expected to be in place? 
Response: 
Yes 
 
Question: 

17. Do you expect the upgrades to occur before the other work begins? 
Response: 
No 
 
Question: 

18. Will there be a “TEST DEV” environment available during the consulting process? 
Response: 
Yes 
 
Question: 

19. Which organizations (both internal and external) and how many individuals will the 
contractor consult in order to develop the dashboards, data models, subject areas and 
new data sources? 
Response: 
The contractor will work with the Court BI PM and other ETL developers only 
 
Question: 

20. Do you have security and privacy requirements impacting the project? 
Response: 
No 
 
Question: 

21. Do you have any language requirements in addition to English, e.g. Spanish? 
Response: 
No 
 
Question: 

22. What kind of activities are expected in order to support efforts to share data with 
external agencies? Who are these external agencies? 
Response: 
The activities involve setting up automated procedures for notifications and report 
sharing with other agencies. The Courts cannot disclose the external agencies.  
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Question: 
23. The RFP mentions a number of existing Oracle BI dashboard and reporting solutions. Were 
 these built by DC Courts staff or by another vendor on behalf of the DC Courts? 

Response: 
The existing BI design and dashboard were built by DC Courts staff and two additional 
vendors at different stages of the BI Program. 
 
Question: 

24. If the existing Oracle BI dashboard and reporting solutions were built by another vendor, is 
 that same vendor invited to bid on this current RFP? 

Response: 
 Yes.   

 
Question: 

25. The RFP mentions that you have a number of existing reports. How many total reports do 
you have existing and how many are currently in BI Publisher vs Oracle BI 
Answers/Dashboards?  
Response: 
The BI reports are generated by end users. Approximately, 20% of the reports are in BI 
Publisher and the remaining in BI Answers.  

  
Question: 

26. The RFP mentions that the DC Courts “BI Team continues to work on Court Reporting 
Division and Special Operations Division Dashboards.” How do you envision that this 
might impact and/or intermingle with the work outlined in this RFP? That is, might there be 
some overlaps that require us to coordinate the development, or is this a completely separate 
set of data, subject area, RPD, and presentation catalog? 
Response: 
The subject areas for these dashboards are already in place. The contractor has to 
design and develop the dashboard as per the requirements noted in the solicitation. 

 
Question: 

27. The RFP notes that your end-users have been enabled to create their own reports. Do you 
envision that this project will require incorporating any of those user-developed reports into 
any of the reports and dashboards the Courts wants built, or will the current user reports and 
dashboards be out of scope for this effort? 
Response: 
The end-user reports will not be included in the enterprise/operational dashboards. 
 
Question: 

28. Regarding the possible overlapping development noted in Section C.2.3, how many dev/test 
environments do you have now to support the development efforts? Are they commodity 
servers or Oracle Engineered Systems (Exadata, Exalytics, Exalogic)? 
Response: 

 The Courts have one development and one test environment.  They are commodity servers. 
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Question: 
29. The RFP notes that single-sign-on is configured and integrated with Active Directory. Is 

this Oracle’s single-sign-on, or other? If other, please name the security framework you are 
using. 

 Response: 
 It is Oracle BI Single sign-on. 

 
Question: 

30. Do you intend to simply address the data quality in the data warehouse, or do you intend to 
institute a true Master Data Management approach, in which you feed the defined master 
data back to the originating source systems? 

 Response: 
 The Courts do not feed the master data back to the originating source. We fix the data issues 

directly at the source.  
 
Question: 

31. Will you expect the vendor to reverse engineer and/or otherwise incorporate the output of 
 current reporting systems in the proposed new solution? If so, can you provide some details 
 on any reports that need to be reverse engineered? 
 Response: 
 There will be no reverse engineering.  

 
Question: 

32. Bullet point 1 notes that you want “strategic alignment of court activities with goals and 
 objectives.” Do you intend to use the Oracle BI Scorecard option, or are you simply 
 stating that you want this high-level objective met? 
 Response: 
 We do not use BI score card option. 

 
Question: 

33. Bullet point 2 mentions that you want to “Align budgeting and planning with strategic 
objectives.” What budgeting and planning system are you using? Is the budgeting and 
planning system and its data within the scope of this effort? If so, what data source is this 
contained within, the MIP Financial System, the Financial systems (import external reports), 
or other? 

 Response: 
The budget and planning system and the data are in MIP Financial System and spread 
sheets from Oracle Financial System which is hosted in the cloud. 
 
Question: 

34. Bullet point 4 mentions that you want to “Enhance data quality”. Can you expound upon 
what data quality issues you currently have? 

 Response: 
 If data issues are identified at the ETL/repository/analysis levels, the contractor shall bring it 

to the attention of the COTR. 
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Question: 
35. Bullet point 7 mentions the need to “share data with external agencies and organizations.”  

Please expound on who you would be sharing data with, what systems you would be sharing 
to/from, what protocols and/or API’s you believe you will be using, what types of 
integration/sharing exist today, etc. 

  Response: 
  The Courts efforts to share data with any external agencies have been through email   
  notifications and if necessary, reports that are also sent via email.   
 
  Question: 
36. Bullet point 8 notes the need for “near-real-time reporting as well as data aggregation”.  
  Please define what is meant by “near-real-time”. Do you desire data integration updated  
  daily, hourly, up to the minute, up to the second, or even triggered by transactions hitting  
  the source systems? 
  Response: 
  The Courts are currently integrating nightly and anticipate the frequency to be at least 2 to 3  
  times per day. 
 

 Question: 
37. What is the level of effort, in terms of FTE percentage, of your IT team’s time (10%, 40%,  
  etc.)?  And in terms of your business representative’s time? 
  Response: 
  The level of effort is 50%. 
 
  Question: 
38. Also, regarding “near-real-time reporting”, is this the reason for the Shareplex, real-time  
  data replication?  Or do you envision some other approach to accomplish the “near-real- 
  time” data integration and reporting? 
  Response: 
  Yes 
 
  Question: 
39. Bullet point 10 notes the need for “better performance and response time.” Can you provide 
  details as to the current performance and response time deficiencies? 
  Response: 
  There are no deficiencies in the current response time. For the very complex dashboard  
  reports, the time is 5-8 seconds.  
 
  Question: 
40. To accomplish these performance improvements noted in Section C.3.2, do you have a near- 
  production environment that can be used for performance testing and optimization? 
  Response: 
  Yes 
 
  Question: 
41. Bullet point 11 notes the need for “stable and reliable environments.” Does this infer some  
  instability and unreliability in your current environment(s)? If so, can you explain the  
  deficiencies? 
  Response: 
  No 
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  Question: 
42. Bullet point 12 mentions the need to “reduce the total number of reporting systems and 

associated licensing/support costs.” Please expound on the various reporting systems that 
you currently have in place. Or, will the inclusion of the 8 new data sources identified in 
this RFP provide this needed reduction in reporting systems? 
Response: 
The new data sources identified in the RFP will suffice. 
 
Question: 

43. Bullet point 13 mentions the need to “reduced the effort” of your current DC Courts teams, 
both IT and business. Can you expound on what requires the current level of effort? That 
is, is the main effort combining and cleansing data from multiple sources? Is it due to the 
complexities of current reporting solutions? Or, are there other factors behind the current 
level of effort? 

  Response: 
  To reduce the effort by providing centralized data warehouse and reporting for all 

applicants/system used at the DC Courts.  
 

Question: 
44. It is noted that eight (8) new source systems must be added to your BI environment. Can 

you provide any more details about these source systems, such as data models, data 
quantities/volumes, data types, etc.? 

 Response: 
The source systems are small to medium Oracle or SQL Server databases, used by COTS 
products implemented at DC Courts.  
 
Question: 

45. When including these 8 new source systems, do you anticipate that each of them will stand 
on its own, or will they be incorporated into existing models? 

  Response: 
  Both, a combination of standing alone, or integrated into existing data models.  
 

Question: 
46. Will each of these 8 new source systems have its own Oracle BI subject area? Will any of 

them be broken down into multiple subject areas? 
  Response: 
  Both, a combination of standing alone or multiple subject areas depending on the data 

source. 
 

Question: 
47. Will the “Avaya VoIP Call Center Systems” or “Court Smart Courtroom Audio Recording  
  System” be providing audio files for ingestion into the database, or will they simply   
   provide metadata tags about the calls and audio recordings? If they include the audio  
  data, will you require dynamic search on the audio recordings? 
  Response: 

They will provide metadata tags for these data sources. 
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Question: 
48. The RFP mentions a number of dashboards to be built. Do you have any current designs 

documented or existing outlines of desired analytics and reports to include on these 
dashboards, or is that to be determined in the design phase of this project? 

  Response: 
 Please refer to the Courts Business Intelligence Architecture Diagram (Attachment B). 

 
Question: 

49. The RFP mentions the need to “complete the migration of ETL tool from OWB to ODI”. 
Regarding this, we have a number of questions: 
a. What has been completed to-date on this migration effort? 
b. Who has performed this work? 
c. Is any of the migrated ETL tested and operational, or is it all still development in 
progress? 
If any is in production, please provide details on the ETL mappings that are in production 
versus those that are in development, and those yet to be migrated. 
Response: 
It is still in the development phase. The tasks are performed by Court employees and with 
the assistance of an external vendor.  
 
Question: 

50. The RFP notes the need to upgrade from OBIEE 11.1.1.9 to OBIEE 12c. Do you own new 
hardware to perform an out-of-place upgrade of 11.1.1.9 to 12c? If so, do you plan for the 
upgrade to be performed on commodity hardware or an Exalytics box? 

  Response: 
  Upgrade 11.1.1.7 to 12c. to be performed out of place. No Exalytics box.  
 

Question: 
51. The RFP mentions that dashboard development sequence will be determined later per the 

direction of the Courts. Do you expect that the various dashboards identified will be of 
relatively equal size and scope, or do you imagine some areas that will require significantly 
more work to design and develop? 

  Response: 
  The dashboards will be of relatively equal size.  
 

Question: 
52. The RFP notes that the Contractor will work with the Courts staff to “assess existing 

requirements, which come in a form of written specifications, early prototypes, meeting 
notes and verbal interviews.” Do any of these materials exist to-date? If so, can they be 
provided now? 

 Response: 
 No, the Courts are unable to provide them at present.  
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Question: 
53. We presume that the lines in the Deliverables Table reflects the various phases or Agile 

Sprints which you want to focus on during the project. In other words, it appears that you 
want to focus on Cherwell and C-Track data sources first, on Court Smart, VoIP/Avaya and 
MIP next, etc. Please confirm. 

  Response: 
  Yes, that is correct.  
 

Question: 
54. Are these currently grouped by functional area, by subject matter experts involved in the 

review and design of the various break-outs, or some other logical grouping? 
   Response: 
   By subject matter expert involvement.  
 

Question: 
55. The Deliverables Table shows item 0005 Training end-users at the end. However, should 

we actually plan to deliver a series of end-user training sessions, aligned with the various 
Agile Sprints, in which we deploy various functional dashboards and reports during the 
project? 

 Response: 
 End user training as needed.  
 

Question: 
56. The RFP notes that the need for a security clearance may arise. What type of clearance 

might be required? Will the Courts sponsor this clearance and cover the cost of it? 
  Response: 
  If the need shall arise, the Courts will notify the Contractor of all such requirements as soon 

as practicable.  
 

Question: 
57. The RFP notes a five (5) page limit for the Technical Approach. Must all components the 

Technical Approach fit into this limit, including our understanding of the RFP requirements, 
the definition and feasibility of our approach, the comprehensive lists of tasks and 
deliverables, our definition of project responsibilities and accountability, our initial project 
plan, and any other articles which we determine will best explain our approach? 

 Response: 
 Yes, please adhere to Section L.19.1.2 of the RFP. 
 

Question: 
58. Is your Oracle BI Administration environment set up as a Multi-User Development 

Environment (MUDE)? 
  Response: 
  Yes 
 

Question: 
59. Do you currently retrieve AD groups? 
  Response: 
  Yes 
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Question: 
60. Will you use your AD groups to create “grained-level” security measures, or will the groups 

needed for those definitions come from somewhere else? 
  Response: 
  Yes, the Courts are currently using them.   
 

Question: 
61. Regarding training, how many power vs end users do you have? Is the expectation that all 

will be trained by AST or are the Courts interested in a Train-the-Trainer model to control 
training costs? 

  Response: 
  The Courts are interested in the Train-the-Trainer model.  
 

Question: 
62. Do the Courts want all work to be performed on-site, or will you allow remote, off-site 

work? 
Response: 
The Courts want all work to be performed on-site.  
  
Question: 

63. Do the Courts want all work performed by U.S.-based employees, or do you desire the use 
of off-shore work to help manage overall project costs? 

  Response: 
  Yes, all work must be performed by U.S. based employees. 
 

Question: 
64. Will the Courts allow for a 2-week extension of the proposal deadline in order to allow 

vendors the opportunity to provide a comprehensive, well-developed proposal? 
  Response: 
  Not presently. Any extension of the proposal deadline will be issued via an amendment to  
  the RFP. 


